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Memorandum 
To: W. Martin Morics, Comptroller 
  

From: Rob Hunden, Blount Hunter, Todd Gruen 
 C. H. Johnson Consulting, Inc. 

CC: Mike Daun, Richard Li 

Date: July 1, 2005 

Re: Update on Pabst City 

 
On June 10, 2005, Johnson Consulting received a written response to our analysis 
from Juneau Avenue Partners, the developer of Pabst City. We have also had 
various discussions with them regarding the Project, at their request. The intent of 
these communications was to respond to the suggestions and concerns we raised 
in our initial report to your office. Per our discussions with your office, we are 
providing you with our responses to the communications with the developer. 

 In our opinion, the follow-up letter was provided to support various 
positive attributes of the project that were illustrated in our report, not to 
necessarily react to the issues/concerns presented. For example, the letter 
makes several remarks with regard to the location of the project. Almost all 
of the remarks were general in nature that did not significantly address the 
specific concerns that were brought up in our report. There was no new 
data presented in the initial written response from the developer that 
would alter our analysis.  

 However, in other communications recently, the developer indicated that 
their project plans included many of the recommendations in our report. 
Since the release of the report, the cineplex has been reduced in size and 
the grocery concept is being rethought altogether. It is unfortunate that 
those plans were not made available to us before we released our report. 

o To be clear, we had previously issued two requests for information 
jointly with SB Friedman & Company (prior to our report being issued) 
and had a conference call with all parties between these two requests 
with the City Comptroller, DCD, the developer, and SB Friedman & 
Co. We also had made ourselves available for any potential meetings 
that the developer thought would be necessary and/or useful to help 
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communicate the information. Our report was based on the data 
provided from those requests over a period of many weeks. The 
original lack of data, including some lack of responses to our 
requests, was reflected in the findings and conclusions of our May 31, 
2005 report.  

 Since our report was released, we have had much more candid 
conversations with the developers. From these discussions, it is clear that 
their concept for the Project is more similar to what we had prescribed. 
Following these discussions, we have a new sense of comfort related to the 
potential tenant choices.  

 While we are comfortable with the developer’s potential tenant choices and 
goals, true success will depend on their ability to execute leases with the 
best tenants. After further discussion with the development team, we are 
more confident of their ability to execute leases with prime tenants.  

 In fact, scrutiny of the project has led to much greater visibility for 
retailers/restaurants considering Milwaukee. Many prime retailers and 
restaurants are now eager to establish a presence in Milwaukee. This has 
resulted in some risk that if the Project does not move forward quickly, the 
prime retailers and restaurants may choose other locations in the 
metropolitan area. This would hurt the exclusivity/novelty of the Project 
when it does proceed. 

 The 90,000-square foot, three-story space next to the proposed Gameworks 
is a large space that is still not assigned to any tenant(s). Normally, this 
would be a concern. However, we have assumed low sales productivity in 
our report, so if the developer subdivides the space – as it indicated it may 
-- we are confident it will achieve greater sales than as an 'anchor' concept 
and as such, will outperform our projections. 

 In summary, based on the additional information on the project concept 
and strategy we are more confident with the concept and the developer's 
ability to execute it.  

 

As it relates to site, access and utilization, we still have concerns. These are not 
faults of anyone or anything; these simply are critical factors that exist and should 
be mitigated by the developer, the City, or both. 

 Our report recommended a dedicated shuttle system or a completely 
revamped and improved trolley from what currently exists. We believe it is 
imperative for the Project's success that the Developer complete an 
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actionable plan for shuttling patrons to the project day and night, on a 
consistent basis, looping every 10 minutes during lunch and dinner periods 
and every 15 minutes for other periods. We recommend that the City 
continue to make this issue a critical deal point with the developer as the 
project moves forward. It must be addressed. We are of the opinion that 
the project's success depends on predictably getting people to the site. 

 Our other primary site recommendation is for the City and/or developer to 
closely examine the blocks immediately to the east of the Project in order to 
ensure that the Project is fully and easily woven into the rest of downtown. 
These are gateway blocks to the balance of downtown. With them in the 
plan, visibility and access increase significantly. Without them, they 
become a visual barricade to the Project. In urban settings, what cannot be 
easily seen by pedestrians, can have difficulty attracting patrons (out of 
sight, out of mind). 

If the site and transit issues can be addressed as part of this development deal, we 
believe the City can look forward to a project with a good chance of success.  

The initial communication from the developer is attached.  












